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(Thursday, December 23, 2010, 9:00 a.m.)

1

2

* * *
CHAIR HOWDEN:

3

(Gavel.)

I'd like to call bur

4

Thursday, December 23rd, 2010 meeting of the Maui County

5

Board of Water Supply to order.

6

present:

7

Hoxie.

8

of Water Supply, Jeffrey Eng; our Deputy Corporation

9

Counsel, Ed Kushi; and, I guess, an appearance by Ellen

Members presently

Kevin Boteilho, Don Gerbig, Ted Yamamura, John
We are joined by the Director of the Department

10

Kraftsow, formerly from Water Resources, and Clay

11

Rumbaoa and John Stubbart from Castle & Cooke.

12

comes Phyllis.

13

14

Here

I just thought we could take care of some of
the basic stuff and get movement going.

15

No announcements.

16

Might we have a motion to approve the minutes

17

for October 28th?

18

MEMBER HOXIE:

19

MEMBER YAMAMURA:

20

CHAIR HOWDEN:

21

MEMBER YAMAMURA:

22

CHAIR HOWDEN:

23

MEMBER YAMAMURA:

24

25

So moved.
A couple typos.

He moved.

Is that a second?

Second.

Okay.

Great.

But I do have corrections.

I'll just give this to you.
MS. HAYASHIDA:

So accepted with the
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1

corrections?

2

CHAIR HOWDEN:

3

(A chorus of ayes.)

4

CHAIR HOWDEN:

5

MEMBER GERBIG:

7

CHAIR HOWDEN:

8

MEMBER

Those in favor?

Minutes of November 18th.

Any corrections?

YA~ffiMURA:

I have -- I gave her both

minutes.
CHAIR HOWDEN:

11

MEMBER YAMAMURA:

Oh , both.
There's correction in that

as well.
CHAIR HOWDEN:

Might we have a motion to

15

MEMBER HOXIE:

I wasn't here.

16

CHAIR HOWDEN:

What?

17

MEMBER HOXIE:

I wasn't here.

18

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Oh , okay.

19

MEMBER YAMAMURA:

20

CHAIR HOWDEN:

21

MEMBER GERBIG:

22

CHAIR HOWDEN:

23

(A chorus of ayes.)

24

CHAIR HOWDEN:

13
14

25

Have

Yes.

10

12

Okay.

you guys had a chance to review those?

6

9

Sure.

approve?

So moved.

Second?
Second .
Okay .

Okay.

So those in favor?

Appeals , Number VI-A,

the Appeal 09-02 has been withdrawn.

So we'll be
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1

discussing that.

2

Strini appeal until more members are here, if that's

3

acceptable to you.

I think perhaps we should wait on the

MR. KUSHI:

4

Mr. Chair, for the record, on the

5

Appeal 09-02 by Michael Perry, attached to your agenda

6

is a letter -- copy of a letter from Isaac Hall,

7

attorney, dated November 17th, 2010, which explains the

8

circumstances why he is withdrawing his appeal, just for

9

the record.
CHAIR HOWDEN:

10
11

Thank you, Counsel.

we move on, then, to Unfinished Business?

12

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

13

CHAIR HOWDEN:

14

skipped right by that.

15

you.

16
17

So might

Public Testimony.

Ah, public testimony.
Oh~

yes, it's here.

Any public testimony?

Ellen, please.

MS. KRAFTSOW:

Wow,

Okay, thank

Good morning, Board Members.

My name is Ellen Kraftsow.

And happy holidays.

18

I'm here because I received -- upon returning

19

to the United States, I received a number of emails and

20

phone calls from Lanai residents who were concerned

21

based upon the minutes.

22

the board meetings that you've had on the Lanai Water

23

Use and Development Plan.

24

I wanted to try to clarify some points.

25

And so I've read the minutes of

And for whatever it's worth,

I understand the concerns that were raised
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1

included the Water Resources Protection section, the

2

nine-foot fence, the recommendations regarding

3

entitlements and the demand analysis.

4

some time to read over the plan again on the web.

5

actually didn't keep a copy, but -- while there were

6

places where the wordsmithing would have made me groan

7

and I would have liked to rewrite the wording, as far as

8

the content and the substance of the plan, I stand by it

9

completely.

And I did have
I

The demand analysis was done, the

10

escalation factors used for the demand analysis were

11

done by Carl Freedman, by the same methods that the

12

other districts were done.

13

were derived from multiple years of pumpage data and,

14

also, basically, population data and other data that

15

were used and is consistent with the community plan

16

forecast.

17

applied in the same way that they were for the other

18

districts.

19

further scrutiny, if necessary.

20

And those escalation factors

And those escalation factors were derived and

So I'm sure that that will stand up to

With regard to the Water Resources Protection

21

section, I can't speak for the Department's current

22

intentions, but our intention at the time had been to

23

include a water resources protection section for all

24

elements of the plan.

25

would come at the end when we did portions that applied

That was one of the things that
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1

to all. districts.

2

Molokai would.

3

Commission staff at the time were behind this.

4

was nothing in there that was inconsistent with the

5

State Water Resources Protection Plan.

6

And so Maui would have had one, as

I believe that the State Water
There

With regard to the nine-foot fence, that was

7

not something that I came up with, but, rather, was a

8

recommendation by several resource managers that I spoke

9

to, one of whom, at least, I know came and testified in

10

Lanai as to the need for that fence in some areas.

11

the recommendations said were not necessarily to build a

12

nine-foot fence, but, rather, to build the fence,

13

continue building the fence, complete the fence,

14

(inaudible) removal and then evaluate as to whether

15

there were areas that needed to be raised to nine feet,

16

and, if so, raise them.

17

What

There is nothing in a nine-foot fence that is

18

inconsistent with Federal standard.

There is a Federal

19

standard, but that's to represent a minimum required for

20

that kind of deer.

21

residents and by resource managers that they have seen

22

deer jump that fence.

23

have the deer counts from DLNR which are included in the

24

plan.

25

So there may, in fact, still be a need for a nine-foot

There are reports both by Lanai

So -- and the other thing is I

And they do not show a diminishing count of deer.
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1

fence.

2

and build it if and where that's necessary.

3

say that it must.

But what the plan says

4

1S

to evaluate that need
It doesn't

With regard to the entitlements, there is

5

nowhere in the plan that it suggests taking away their

6

entitlements.

7

build out those areas which are only partially entitled

8

before they become fully entitled and built out that

9

there needs to be a demonstration that certain measures

What it suggests is that in order to

10

have been taken to protect the aquifer and that the

11

aquifer -- concerns about the aquifer seem to be

12

resolving.

13

plan.

14

misunderstanding of what the plan really said.

And those were the recommendations of the

So I felt that reading the minutes there was some

15

And if there were any further questions, I'd

16

be happy to answer them, but I just wanted to come and

17

say that.

18

phone calls and emails requesting that I come and say

19

that.

And I wanted to also let you know that I had

20

So with that, happy holidays and --

21

CHAIR HOWDEN:

22

Wait.

Are there any questions

from Board Members?

23

MEMBER YAMAMURA:

24

CHAIR HOWDEN:

25

MEMBER YAMAMURA:

I do.

Ted, yeah.
Is there a scope of work
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1

2

governing all water use development plans?
MS. KRAFTSOW:

There was a project description

3

that had to be approved both by the State Water

4

Commission and by the Council.

5

developed prior to the issuance of the framework for the

6

Hawaii Water Plan; however, through -- I mean, we've

7

worked along the way, one of the members of the State

8

Water Commission staff has been on the Lanai Water

9

Advisory Committee to ensure that we are consistent and

The scope for Lanai was

10

within the framework of the Hawaii State Water Plan.

11

And, again, Lanai was a more complete plan

12

because it was done as a separate island.

13

elements that are in the Lanai plan were initially

14

initially intended to also be included in the Maui plan

15

and the Mo10kai plan.

16

districts, we didn't feel that all the elements needed

17

to be done by districts.

18

island-wide.

19

things that really applies island-wide; it does not

20

apply only to one district.

21

Haiku, the same mauka watershed reaches are important.

22

So, yes, you don't see them in the Central Maui

23

infrastructure plan, but that doesn't mean that they

24

were not initially intended, you know.

25

But all the

Although there are many

Some of them would be done

Watershed protection is one of those

MEMBER GERBIG:

You know, South Maui and

I'm confused.

Are you -- did
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1

you write a water use protection plan or did you write a

2

water use development plan, because the title is

3

protection, not development?

4

MS. KRAFTSOW:

Water Use Development and

5

Protection Plan.

That was a vote that was taken by the

6

Lanai Water Advisory Committee.

7

MEMBER GERBIG:

8

MS. KRAFTSOW:

9

Because

That was
-- one of the -- one of the

requirements of the statewide framework is to evaluate

10

the priorities of the community.

And I believe in the

11

beginning of the executive summary, it states that, you

12

know, they -- these were the -- considered the main

13

priorities and issues.

14

the watershed in Lanai was of great concern.

15

extremely and uniquely dependent upon its watershed and

16

the rain drip, fog drip from its forests, more so even

17

than the islands that are taller.

18

being in the rain shadow of Maui and being relatively

19

short in height relative to the other islands, the fog

20

drip from the forest becomes particularly important

21

because it's not in the ideal catchment -- not in the

22

ideal altitude wher e i t r e c e i ve s th e rain f all

23

dir e ct rainfall from the inversion.

24

rain shadow of Maui.

25

And so the status of the forest was, on Lanai, one of

And one of them was the state of

Okay.

Lanai is

And especially

th e

And it's in the

So the fog drip is very important.
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1

the top, maybe the top, water issue, water concern.

2

So for Lanai, it was deemed appropriate to

3

make that statement by calling it Water Use Development

4

and Protection Plan.

5

both Charlie and Lenore, the two main staff members that

6

we deal with over in the Commission, kind of liked about

7

the plan.

8

9
10

And that was something, I think,

It wasn't something that they objected to.
MEMBER GERBIG:

In your opinion, then, the

Water Use Protection Plan that you have submitted, that
can suffice as a Water Use Development Plan?

11

MS. KRAFTSOW:

12

MEMBER GERBIG:

This entire -Because it's entitled -- I

13

thought we were doing the Water Use Development Plan,

14

that was my interpretation.

15
16

MS. KRAFTSOW:

Use Development and Protection Plan.

17

MEMBER GERBIG:

18

MS. KRAFTSOW:

19

20
21
22

The title of the book is Water

And protection, yeah.
And protection.

It's not only

protection; it's Water Use Development and Protection.
MEMBER GERBIG:

That's beyond the Water Use

Development Plan requir ements, then.
MS. KRAFTSOW:

It is consistent with the Water

23

Use and Dev elopment Plan requirements because the Wat e r

24

Use and Development Plan requirements stipulate that one

25

should identify what the primary concerns and issues are
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1

that are facing a given community and adjust those.

2

the primary water concern and issue facing the Lanai

3

community was deemed to be the status of the · forest.

4

MEMBER GERBIG:

5

CHAIR HOWDEN:

6

And

Thank you.
Any other questions from Board

Members?
MEMBER BOTEILHO:

7

Was eradication of the

8

animals ever considered as a alternative source to

9

building a fence, elimination from the island?
MS. KRAFTSOW:

10

The -- the purpose of building

11

the fence is to eliminate them within the hale, within

12

the primary watershed area.
MEMBER BOTEILHO:

13

14

Yeah, but has it ever been

considered--

15

MS. KRAFTSOW:

I believe

16

MEMBER BOTEILHO:

-- for the entire island?

17

MS. KRAFTSOW:

that Mr. Murdock did at one

18

time consider it.

But in relat i on, th e re's a large

19

hunting company, a large subsistence hunting company on

20

Lanai, and that was not deemed community friendly at the

21

time.

22

MEMBER BOTEILHO:

23

CHA I R HOWDEN:

Okay, Ell e n.

MS. KRAFTSOW:

Thank you.

24

25

Okay.

Thank you.
Thank you so

much.
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1

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Are there any other people in

2

the audience who want to testify on the Lanai Water Use

3

Development?

4
5
6

7

8
9

Councilmember Sol Kaho'ohalahala.

And I would also like to acknowledge that
Kelli Myers is here.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA:

Good morning,

Chair and Members.
I wasn't really planning to testify, but I
thought, as a member of the Lanai Water Advisory

10

Committee, that, since I'm here, that I would like to at

11

least support the plan before the Commission.

12

in doing so, there's just one thing that I wanted to

13

share with you that comes more from a cultural

14

perspective than a real technical perspective.

15

And if I may, Chair,

0

wai kau inoa.

And then

And if

16

you've ever heard that, it's a question that's always

17

been posed to anyone in Hawaii when you're trying to

18

find out what their name is.

19

I wanted to read some of the interpretation and insights

20

of this given by Dr.

21

Kanaka Maoli Foundation in Hilo, Hawaii.

22

that it is simple, yet it's a very complex question.

23

he says, wai is really water, H20 and the liquid mineral

24

of life, whereas

25

what is your name.

0

0 wai kau inoa, okay.

(inaudible).

But

And he is with the
And he says

wai kau inoa is now translated as
The esoteric inference embedded in
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1

the inquiry is your identity, what is your water source.

2

Okay.

3

humans are

4

water begets water and just as kalo begets kalo.The

5

question who are you in today's society echoes the

6

foreign realty that all of life begins and ends with an

7

individual.

8

we are all from an ancient dissent system of water.

9

the us is equal to water formula is further justified by

And the simplicity of this is the fact that we
ph~siologically

made up of mostly water.

And

Traditional realms solidify the fact that
So

10

the water terms that we have In our family.

11

the emergent water.

12

springs.

13

intelligence, yeah, was not absent of this simple water

14

idea.

15

inquire into their generations of water ancestors.

16

-- and in the case where the name is ancestral, the

17

water line is direct.

18

immediately ancestral, then more inquiry has to be made

19

to ensure that the human springs are compatible,

20

removing the threat of contamination to the spring.

21

the water quality of one spring may not be that of

22

another spring.

23

Kupuna is

Moopuna is the succession of water

Punahele is the lashing spring.

And so Hawaii

So to ask someone of their name was really to
So

In the case where the name is not

And

So I wanted to just impart to the Commission

24

that what you're dealing with here in the Lanai

25

situation goes much further than the technical work that
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1

needs to be done in terms of how you view water on an

2

island like Lanai.

3

0

4

for.

There is inherent in this question,

wai kau inoa, is the same as asking what is this plan

5

So as a Lanai person whose genealogies go back

6

now more than 20 generations, and having participated in

7

the Water Use and Development Plan, I want to at least

8

impart on you, the Commission, that this is a document

9

and a plan and a work and a vision that is long overdue

10

for an island.

11

that simple question,

12

where do you corne from, what is your waters, today, the

13

longer that we put it off, we are in fact allowing the

14

degradation of the island and its ability to be

15

connected to the people and that water.

16

And if we don't address the issue of
0

wai kau inoa, what is your name,

So I just feel an urgency that you should

17

allow this plan to move forward against all of the tides

18

that have corne before you as a commission to find

19

deficiencies within the plan.

20

nearly 14 years in the making.

21

island in many, many ways.

22

recently.

23

island has been devastated.

24

that are starving.

25

and -- and the (inaudible) hunt.

It is a plan that's
14 years has changed the

You've been on Lanai

Aside from the rain we've had recently, the
It's overrun with animals

I've hunted in this last two deer
The animals that we
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1

harvested were all bones, skin and bones.

2

the condition of which we have ever experienced.

3

That's not

In Lanai City, the deer are now found within

4

the city.

They're now eating the plants and the food

5

that's available in people's yards.

6

In the entire time I've lived on Lanai, herds of deer

7

were never found within the core of the city.

8

today, it's a -- it's a normal occurrence.

This is unheard of.

And,

So we have many issues that are -- that are

9

10

before us today.

11

on moving forward on a plan that's going to help at

12

least start a process of recovering, then we are only

13

delaying it to allow it to degenerate further.

14

But unless we take a serious decision

So--

So with that, I wanna ask for your support in

15

making this recommendation to the Council and allow that

16

next process to work with the incoming Council so that

17

Lanai can begin to decide how it's gonna manage its

18

water.

19

0

20

their water is.

21

them that opportunity to -- to maintain, to work and to

22

protect the waters of Lanai.

23

24
25

And then the people who are asking the question,

wai kau inoa, know exactly who they are and where
And it 's your responsibility to give

CHAIR HOWDEN:

So mahalo.

Thank you.

Any questions from

Board Members?
(Silence.)
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CHAIR HOWDEN:

1

I will say that we had a

2

special meeting last week and we approved, with some

3

reservations, the plan.

4

could give Councilman Kaho'ohalahala a copy of our draft

5

letter once we've approved it.

6

approved the plan.

7

about height of deer fence, the -- there were questions

8

about how Ellen came to some of the figures, which I

9

believe she answered this morning, and, also, the -- we

10

removed ourselves from trying to take away entitlements

11

that were already granted because that's not our

12

kuleana.

13

want to correct or add something to that?

14

we'll be actually dealing with that in a few minutes.

And I will note perhaps we

But basically, we have

There were certain reservations

More or less, that's -- Ted or Don, do you

15

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA:

16

CHAIR HOWDEN:

17

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA:

18

Okay.

So

Okay.

Thank you very much.
Thank you.

And

Kui is still expected?

19

MS. HAYASHIDA:

20

call from her, so, yes.

21

CHAIR HOWDEN:

I haven't received a phone
She should be coming soon.
Okay.

So might we move on to

22

the draft letter as -- oh, any other testimony?

23

Clay?

Okay.

John,

So

24

MEMBER GERBIG:

25

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Are you going to that now?
Oh, yeah.
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MEMBER GERBIG:

2

CHAIR HOWDEN:

3

I think this is pretty

stiaightforward .
MEMBER GERBIG:

4

5

What about the hearing?

I don't have a copy of it.

Could you give me a copy?

6

CHAIR HOWDEN:

7

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

8

of it.

11

Well, that's my copy.

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

10

Yeah, I have two copies

So-MEMBER GERBIG:

9

There's a copy over here.

No.

I printed one out

before I left.

12

CHAIR HOWDEN:

13

MEMBER GERBIG:

14

CHAIR HOWDEN:

15

MEMBER GERBIG:

She does have an honest face.
You want me to comment?
Yes, please.
Based on the motions that were

16

put forward, this letter addresses each one of those.

17

The -- each one -- and then they're listed, you know,

18

one, two, three, four -- the five motions that were

19

made, in each paragraph, it's my interpretation, b e st I

20

could, as what the motion -- we had for the motion.

21

second paragraph relat e s to the -- to one of the

22

motions, the midterm measures where the stateme nt was

23

made.

24

the motion.

25

motion a little more based on the -- where it is in the

The

This, I think, was best of my interpretation from
This is what -- this kind of clarifies the
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1

plan, you know, where the motion was made or clarified.

2

It could be further checked out, but, anyway.

3

so the last

4

that's just whatever (inaudible) insight that not all

5

were in agreement.

6

plan had some inaccuracies that needed to be verified.

7

And they wanted to give a message to the Council that

8

these things should be evaluated prior t o fully

9

accepting them.

p~ragraph

--

And he

that was -- that's

well~

I think our real concern is that the

10

The other thing I wanted to mention with this

11

letter, that we haven't mentioned before, but that this

12

is a private water company and anything that is mandated

13

in the plan that the company has to abide by, those

14

costs can be passed on to the consumer, and most likely

15

they will be.

16

an ordinance or law, then any work that they are

17

required to do under this plan, that cost to produce

18

increases their production of water is certainly gonna

19

be passed on to the consumer.

20

know that, that as -- as a private water company -- and

21

Mr. Eng can verify that, he was with Kaanapali Water,

22

they have one of the highest rates in the state.

23

that's -- that's what they do.

24

state -- they're not subsid ized by county taxes o r state

25

taxes.

Because if it's in this plan, it becomes

I just want everybody to

But

I mean, they're not a

So the private compan ies, everything that they
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1

spend for water gets passed on to the user.

2

saying that I -- I'm . not saying that I don't like the

3

plan, but I think the things that are in the plan that

4

are above and beyond what I consider 174-C, Water

5

Development Plan, those are items above and beyond that

6

could cost the consumer, eventually, his water bill to

7

go up.

8

before, should be separate in a water use protection

9

plan.

I think that there

So I'm not

U~e

those items, as mentioned

That's all.
I move -- I wanna make -- I wanna make one

10
11

more move.

I wanna make a motion.

I wanna make a

12

motion, whether it dies or not, I don't care.

13

make a motion that in place of all of this, because of

14

the fact that we didn't cover a lot of items in here

15

that have been pointed out to me that are questionable

16

on accuracy or questionable on what is required by the

17

water company, talking about items in the plan, that are

18

-- you know, are they legally -- can they legally be

19

required -- I'm not gonna go into the items, but if

20

these items can be

21

the Council should be aware.

22

enforce them, that's another -- another issue.

23

would like -- I would like to make a motion that we

24

discard these and put a broad brush in, stating that the

25

board -- my motion, the board has reviewed the plan,

I wanna

I think everybody should be aware,
And if the Council has to
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1

finds several inaccuracies.

2

is included in the meter water.

3

included.

4

reevaluated with potential inaccuracies cited in the

5

plan.

6

aware that Lanai has a private water company, Lanai

7

Company, water company.

8

codified and then mandated cost for compliance

9

attributable to this plan may be passed on to the Lanai

10

One is being brackish water
Entitled water

lS

not

The accuracy of the table might be

And the Director and -- and Council should be

If this plan is accepted,

water consumers after review and approval by the PUC.

11

I wou ld like to make a motion that that be put

12

in the letter only in disregard all of the other minor

13

things that we've gone through.

14

CHAIR HOWDEN:

15

MEMBER GERBIG:

16

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Yeah.
I know it's a big change.
No.

That's a considerable

17

change given that we did only last week have a meeting

18

of the full Board where we agreed -- you know, the

19

absolute majority of the Board agreed to pass the plan

20

on as-is with certain amendments to it.

21

free to make these motions, Don.

22

question.
MEMBER GERBIG:

23
24
25

That's not the

I cannot make this motion,

then ?
CHAIR HOWDEN:

You're always

What?
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MEMBER GERBIG:

2

CHAIR HOWDEN:

3

Can I not make this motion?
You can always make a motion.

Yeah.

4

MEMBER GERBIG:

5

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Yeah, that's -I'm just saying that in the

6

context of the time that we spent last week, where we

7

did have a full Board, which we won't have today --

8

MEMBER GERBIG:

9

MEMBER HOXIE:

10

MEMBER GERBIG:

11

MEMBER HOXIE:

12

Let's
Let's have a second.
Let's see if we have a second.
Point of order.

We need to

have a second so we can have a discussion.

13

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Okay.

Go ahead, John.

14

MEMBER HOXIE:

I'll second

15

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Of course.

16

MEMBER HOXIE:

17

CHAIR HOWDEN:

18

MEMBER GERBIG:

for discussion .
Okay.

So--

Let me -- let me go on with

19

I know where you're -- what -- what you see, but my

20

point for making the motion was the items that we have

21

in the letter, the four items, were just part of the

22

plan.

23

have no priority as far as what is most important, one

24

being what -- what -- which one is more important over

25

another, which adds confusion to it.

We, so to speak, nitpicked certain things.

And the fact is
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1

that there are some other items that should be maybe

2

included if we're going item by item.

3

listing a few itemsj but we're not saying -- by listing

4

these items, it appears that these are priority, but

5

they may not be.

6

I rest my case.

They may be other items .

All right.

Go ahead.

MEMBER MYERS:

7

And so we're only

I'd like to just comment that

8

the -- what we're discussing should be based on the

9

public testimony, I guess, more than anything else.

I

10

mean, you're saying that there's problems with it and,

11

you know, maybe other details we may have missed and we

12

may wanna put a broad brush on it, but, you know, it 's

13

hard to say that there are or there aren't.

14

not, I don't think, experts enough -- maybe some of us

15

are, but I can't say I am -- in order to say something

16

like that.

And we're

So, I mean, I just wanted to point that out.

17

MEMBER GERBIG:

18

MEMBER MYERS:

I agree with you.
The things that we did address

19

were brought up in testimony.

20

I've observed that there's a lot of support for the plan

21

as well.

22

So, I mean,

And just an observation,

I just want to point that out.

MEMBER GERB IG :

Yeah, I agree with you.

We're

23

not experts.

24

in the point of we 're trying to be experts.

25

other items with in the thing, within the plan that may

And by making these motions, this puts us
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need to be questioned.

But we've only questioned these

2

four, and maybe that's not doing a service to the plan.

3

So I say, like -- like you say, werre not experts, but,

4

yet, we're trying to be, and I say we can't.

5

why my motion is to say we, overall, everybody that

6

should be -- at the County or the Council should be

7

aware that things in this plan, once codified

8

they decide what's to be codified, what's not be

9

codified, I don't -- I don't know.

So that's

how

But once it is

10

codified -- or maybe there should be some expertise to

11

reevaluate the plan based on what's -- what becomes

12

codified or what doesn't.

13

Because once it does, the consumer on Lanai is

14

going to get hit.

15

there's no -- I'm not a lawyer like Mr. Kushi, but it's

16

guarant e ed a private water company is gonna take these

17

costs and put 'em on your bill.

18

in California" it's been done in Kaanapali, it's been

19

done allover.

20

private issues and private concerns, they pass their

21

costs on to the consumer.

22

That's -- that's my point.

If

I mean, it's been don e

I mean, it's just -- when you g e t into

CHAIR HOWDEN:

And that's their right.
Yeah.

I think what we're

23

looking at is perhaps deeper than simpl e economics.

24

think it's the right of the people of Lanai to acc e ss to

25

water, b asically for continued habitation, and if you
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1

don't address the concerns, certainlY the water resource

2

protection concerns.

3

You know, I think as Councilmember

4

Kaho'ohalahala pointed out at the hearing, the public

5

hearing on Lanai, Lanai has been in a state of decline

6

in terms of its -- you know, it's been drying out, it's

7

as Ellen pointed out, it's not a big rain getter, you

8

know.

And -- and a precarious situation where you have

9

simply one aquifer, which in itself is in danger of

10

becoming impaired, you know, and the fog drip that feeds

11

that.

12

So, I mean, we do have two water experts in

13

our audience.

14

to invite both of you to comment on this, because, you

15

know, c learly no one on this board has your level of

16

expertise.
MR. KUSHI:

17

18

Who are you talking about,

Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOWDEN:

19
20

With the Board's permission, I would like

Kraftsow.

21

MEMBER GERBIG:

22

MEMBER HOXIE:

23

John Stubbart and Ellen

May I -- may I comment?
No.

We have a motion on the

floo r .

24

MEMBER GERBIG:

25

MEMBER HOXIE:

We have a motion o n the floor.
We're discussing the motion.
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MEMBER GERBIG:

2

CHAIR HOWDEN:

3

We have a motion.
I mean, you're -- you're

okay.

4

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

Asking for comments.

5

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Okay.

We'll keep going.

6

MS. KRAFTSOW:

I'm wondering, as the author of

7

the document, if I might address some of the -- the

8

comments about inaccuracies.
MR. KUSHI:

9

10

That would be out of order,

Mr. Chair.
MEMBER GERBIG:

11

Yeah.

I'm not going to get

12

into a debate with her on her plan.

13

should.

14

that Lanai is unique, absolutely.

15

also feel

16

shouldn't be done, but I think this is not the

17

appropriate method of handling 'em.

18

have the State under the Water Use Protection Plan,

19

that's where a lot -- most of this thing should be

20

addressed, not in a Water Use Development Plan.

Okay.

I don't think we

But I -- my point is, I -- I do realize
And I know -- and I

I'm not saying that this -- these things

21

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

22

MEMBER GERBIG:

I think the

we

You're

So that's my point.

But the

23

whole thing is I'm not against, you know, what needs --

24

you know, Lanai is unique.

25

Okay.

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

I'm sorry.

I know, Don, how you
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1

feel about this.

And -- and I -- I wanna acknowledge

2

that I think it's wise for none of us to be naive about

3

what happens when the costs of a plan get passed on to

4

the owners of the water system.

5

that -- that, you know, what you're saying is -- is

6

true, probably realistic.

7

MEMBER GERBIG:

8

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

9

that.

I wanna acknowledge

Yeah.
So I don't wanna dismiss

At the same time, I really feel that I, as a

10

Board Member, want to respect that 14 years went into

11

this plan.

12

as a board, some of us fairly new to the understanding

13

of water, to -- to -- to in any way try to shape or

14

change

15

shaped or tried to change or make recommendations on the

16

changing of this plan has come in the areas where there

17

has not been consensus from the Lanai Water Commission.

18

So it's -- it's those areas where there's been

19

questioning in public testimony that we have witnessed

20

where there are certain aspects of the plan that have

21

not met with consensus by the Lanai -- by the WLAC --

22

LWAC.

23

Supply Member, felt that we needed to highlight where

24

there's not consensus, and leave it up to the Council to

25

welcome comments from the public in their process to

More than that.

More than that.

And for us

the only place where I feel that we have

So that is where I, as a -- as a Board of Water
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decide whether those -- those areas need to be

2

addressed.

3 S o that-- so to -- to throw out our motions
4

that we've made at this point, I think, is

5

number one,

6

can throw out motions that have already been decided on

7

from a previous meeting.

8

thinking that we have a quorum here.

I think it's impossible.

CHAIR HOWDEN:

9

I

don't know.

I -- I'm

Yes?

Yes.

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

11

additional motions, right, at this time?
CHAIR HOWDEN:

--

I don't think we

10

12

I

So we could make

Well, when -- when -- Don's

13

motion, basically, extinguishes the motions that we've

14

had before.

15

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

16

CHAIR HOWDEN:

17

Then there's a certain question

MEMBER GERBIG:

Yeah.

19

to do away with the other one.

20

VIC E-CHAIR ROBINSON:

21

you if you would be willing --

22

MEMBER GERBIG:

23

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

25

So I --

there.

18

24

Right.

Part of my motion was

I know.

So I'm asking

Yeah.
-- to withdraw that

request?
MEMBER GERBIG:

Withdraw that, yes.
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VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

1

Because I don't think

2

number one, it's impossible.

3

just throws out all the work that we had already done at

4

the previous meeting.
MEMBER GERBIG:

5

And, number two, it -- it

I realize that.

But in -- in

6

writing the letter, looking at these five items that we

7

put down, it's not -- it's -- we're trying to do an

8

evaluation of the plan based on our expertise,

9

non-expertise.

And I feel a little guilty that maybe

10

I'm not -- you know, that we -- the motions that did

11

pass were -- I mean, okay, we -- we did something on

12

those motions, but there was a lot of other -- just some

13

other items within the plan that may be just as

14

important, but we missed 'ern, you know.

15

didn't get time or whatever.

16

that what we have here is just a sampling, maybe, of

17

what should be further looked at.

18

point.

19

important overall to the protection of Lanai or -- or

20

water use or whatever that we missed.

21

I was just afraid that -- so I threw this out from the

22

point to say, all right, maybe we should just broadbrush

23

it, not get specific.

24

Council may interpret it as being these are our

25

priorities.

I mean, we

So that was my point,

lS

But that was my

And maybe there's other items that are more

That's my point.

Because by putting specific, the

And they're really not our priorities.
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CHAIR HOWDEN:

1

No.

I think the Council will

2

be looking very, very carefully at the Lanai plan.

3

They'll have good legal advice.

4

have something to do with whatever happens in terms of

5

water resources.

6

there are other people from the community, and certainly

7

from Castle & Cooke, who will partake in that process.

8

So I think that, overall, you know, this will be looked

9

at, especially when it was, you know, a divided board

10

that passed this.

12

I pray that he does, anyway.

And

So--

MEMBER YAMAMURA:

11

I'm sure that Ed will

Can I get a legal opinion on

the validity of this motion?
MR. KUSHI:

13
14

motion.

15

what you're --

Mr. Chair, I don't understand the

I've looked at the proposed motion.

16

MEMBER GERBIG:

17

MR. KUSHI:

Is that

There's my motion.

Your motion states that the

18

plan -- recommend that the plan as written be evaluated

19

by the State Water Commission?

20

MEMBER GERBIG:

21

MR. KUSHI:

22

As to whether it meets the

requirements, because it's state law?

23

MEMBER GERBIG:

24

CHAIR HOWDEN:

25

Yeah.

That's correct.
They're going to do that,

anyway, Don.
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MR. KUSHI:

1

Well, you know, you're --

2

Mr. Chair, this Board's task is to l ook at the plan as

3

submitted, make recommendations to the Director,the

4

County of Maui, and then the Director then submits his

5

recommendations, together with yours, to the Council.

6

The State is not included in this process.

7

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

8

MR. KUSHI:

9
10

fine.

Right.

But if that's your recommendation,

As far as the legal procedures, it won't happen

because it's not pursuant to the ordinance.

11

MEMBER GERBIG:

12

MR. KUSHI:

Oh, okay.

So the motion

In essence, if you're saying that

13

you wanna ditch the plan and send it to the State, then

14

you're not doing your duty.
MEMBER GERBIG:

15
16

Oh, well.

I meant to send it

-- well, I could
MR. KUSHI:

17

No, no.

Mr. Chair, Member

18

Robinson is concerned about -- mentioned previ ous

19

motions.

20

this Board made up eight or nine motions, several of

21

them passed, several of them didn't pass, but you made

22

motions on specific areas.

23

encompassing your whole recommendation.

24

be done.

25

As I understand the last meeting, you had

CHAIR HOWDEN:

You did not make a motion

Oh.
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MR. KUSHI:

2

is the entire recommendation.
CHAIR HOWDEN:

3

4

And I'm assuming this draft letter

Motion t6 -- was to accept the

plan with recommendations for revisions.
MR. KUSHI:

5

Right.

But you're not done with

6

revisions, as I understand.

7

motion to accept and approve this draft letter.

And you haven't made a

8

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

We're discussing it.

9

MR. KUSHI:

That's what I said.

10

You're not done yet.
VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

11

12

Correct.

Yeah, I

understand that.

13

CHAIR HOWDEN:

14

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

15

Right.

motion on the floor?

Don.
Do you wanna keep your

You have a second.

16

MEMBER HOXIE:

Let's call for the question.

17

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Okay.

18

MEMBER YAMAMURA:

19

that motion again, please?

Can we -- can I understand

20

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

21

MEMBER GERBIG:

Here's a copy of it.

The motion, to review -- In

22

other words, to discard all the other motions, and then

23

the Board

24

Board has reviewed the plan with several inaccuracies,

25

which includes the brackish water and the potable water,

and put this in place, the letter -- the
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1

excludes entitled water, as an example.

2

this table should be reevaluated with other potential

3

inaccuracies, wherever they may be.

4

quantity requirements under various conservation and

5

preservation measures should be reevaluated for their

6

applicability under HRS 174C, Water Use Development Plan

7

requirements.
CHAIR HOWDEN:

8

9

Okay.

The plan's enormous

Let's have a vote.

Kevin.

10

MEMBER BOTEILHO:

11

CHAIR HOWDEN:

12

The accuracy of

Aye.

Don, your motion, of course,

yes.

13

MEMBER GERBIG:

I have to vote for it, yes.

14

CHAIR HOWDEN:

15

MEMBER YAMAMURA:

16

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

17

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Phyllis.

18

MEMBER MYERS:

No.

19

MEMBER HOXIE:

No.

20

CHAIR HOWDEN:

No, okay.

21

MR. KUSHI:

22

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Ted.
Aye.
No.
No for me.

Kelli.

(Inaudible. )

23

There's no majority.

24

MR. KUSHI:

25

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Well, it's four to three.

Motion fails.
Yeah, motion fails.
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1

actually, I was under -- okay.

2

and we need to --

3

MEMBER GERBIG:

4

CHAIR HOWDEN:

5

MEMBER GERBIG:

6

MR . .KUSHI:

7

10

Yeah.

Now we're --

-- move the letter on.
Yeah, okay.

Unless there are other motions,

Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOWDEN:

8
9

So we have our letter

mean, feel free.

Are there other motions?

I

I mean -- but I -- I think we should

get to this.

11

MEMBER GERBIG:

12

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Go ahead.
Okay.

Might we have a motion

13

to accept the draft letter from the Board of Water

14

Supply, dated December 23rd, recommendations by the

15

Board of Water Supply on the 6-28-2010 Draft Water Use

16

Development and Protection Plan for Lanai?
VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

17

18

Can I -- can I ask a

question?

19

CHAIR HOWDEN:

20

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

Of course.
This motion at the

21

bottom, are you withdrawing that?

22

MEMBER GERBIG:

23

That's part of the letter.

That's -- that was part of the letter.
VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

24
25

So

know.

I don't know.

That's what I wanna

Is this still part of the letter?
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MEMBER GERBIG:

Yeah, it's part of the letter.

2

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

But is that what we're

3

voting on right now, is the acceptance of this proposed

4

motion?

5

letter.
CHAIR HOWDEN:

6

7

VICE-CHA IR ROBINSON:

MEMBER GERBIG:

11

CHAIR HOWDEN:

lS

a different

Yeah.
Oh, do you want to introduce

that motion, too?

13

MEMBER GERBIG:

14

CHAIR HOWDEN:

15

This

motion.

10

12

We already -- the motion's

already been defeated.

8
9

Because it -- it's on the -- it's on the

Well, I -Ed is saying that it's

inappropriate in terms of

16

MEMBER GERBIG:

17

CHAIR HOWDEN:

18

MEMBER GERBIG:

19

we submitted it.

20

whatever, feel free.

Yeah.
-- legality.
This is just the way it was --

If you wanna revise it in the motion,

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

21

So this page is -- it

22

says at the top that it's for reference to the motions

23

only.

24

MEMBER GERBIG:

Yeah.

25

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

So it's not actually
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1

part of the letter?

2

MEMBER GERBIG:

3

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

4

MEMBER GERBIG:

5

MEMBER GERBIG:

It's got one , two , three ,

four , five -VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

11

MEMBER GERBIG:

12

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

14
15

Not this third page.

Okay.
MEMBER GERBIG:

There are five motions and

there's five paragraphs, each one follows each.
MEMBER HOXIE:

17

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

19

It's two pages.

Yeah.

16

18

So when we vote on the

letter, which is what we ' re doing right now --

10

13

That ' s just for

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

8

9

No.

Is that correct?

reference.

6

7

No.

What about this?

be sure what we're approving.
MS. HAYASHIDA:

Okay.

So I just wanna

Thank you.

Okay.

Just for clarification

20

purposes, so everybody is on the same page , this is what

21

you're going to be approving.

22
23

MEMBER GERBIG:
Oh, that one.

I don't have the other page.

Okay.

24

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

25

MEMBER GERBIG:

Sorry.

It's on the back.
I didn ' t see that.
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MS. HAYASHIDA:

2

VICE-CHAIR ROB INS ON:

3

MS. HAYASHIDA:

4

and the back?

MEMB ER YAMAMURA:

MS. HAYASHIDA:

That would be the public

MEMBER YAMAMURA:

MS. HAYASHIDA:

Board Member

-- comments and the public

testimony.

15

MEMBER YAMAMURA:

16

CHAIR HOWDEN:

17

Right.

comments, et cetera.

13
14

As well as all of the

hearings and --

11
12

This is for reference

mentioned attachments on Page 2.

9

10

Okay.

only.

7

8

Right.

Just this letter, the front

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

5

6

So this, not this, right?

Testimony, right.

Yeah, that's listed on the back

of it.
MS. HAYASHIDA:

18

The problem is the last two

19

transcripts may not be able to get to the Director on

20

the 27th .

21

transmit those transcripts.

It may take a few more weeks before we can

22

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

23

MS. HAYASHIDA:

24

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

25

MS. HAYASHIDA:

From the 15th and today?

Yes.
Okay .

Ev erything else, I think --
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CHAIR HOWDEN:

1

2

Okay.

Might we have amotion

to move the l etter forward?

3

MEMBER GERBIG:

I'll make it.

4

CHAIR HOWDEN:

5

MEMBER GERBIG:

6

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

7

MEMBER GERBIG:

8

CHAIR HOWDEN:

9

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

Uh-huh.

10

CHA I R HOWDEN:

Okay.

Any discussion?

11

MEMBER HOXIE:

I'd like to make a comment.

Okay.
Phyl lis, do you wanna make it?
I'll second.

Okay.
Second?

12

You know,

13

watershed protection part of the plan.

14

-- you know, it's very important.

15

still concerned that -- you know, that this water use

16

and protection plan goes far beyond the scope as

17

required of the Water Use and Development Plans.

18

will be supporting it, but I think that we need to move

19

this plan forward .

20

21

I -- I certainly support the intent of the

CHAIR HOWDEN:
person by person?

I think that's

However,

I -- I'm

So I

So do you mind if I just go

Okay.

Kevin?

22

MEMBER BOTEILHO:

23

CHAIR HOWDEN:

24

MEMBER BOTEILHO:

25

MEMBER GERBIG:

Are we voting?

On the letter.
Yes.
Yea.
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Yes.

1

MEMBER YAMAMURA:

2

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

3

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Yes.

4

MEMBER MYERS:

Yes.

5

MEMBER HOXIE:

Yeah.

6

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Thank you.

7

need a break?

Okay.

Yes.

We're going to take a quick break.

8

(Recess, 9:50 a.m. to 9:59 a.m.)

9

CHAIR HOWDEN:

10

session.

11

Strini Appeal.

12

believe.

(Gavel.)

We're back in

So if we might, I would like to move to the
We need to do our deliberation,

MR. KUSHI:

13

I

Mr. Chair, at this time it would

14

be appropriate to entertain a motion to go into

15

Executive Session.

16

MEMBER HOXIE:

So moved

17

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Thank you, John.

18

MEMBER YAMAMURA:

19

CHAIR HOWDEN:

20

You

Unanimous.

Second.

Second.

Okay, Ted.

Those in

favor?

21

(A chorus of ayes.)

22

(Regular Session recessed, 10:00 a.m. to 10:27

23

24

25

a.m.)
CHAIR HOWDEN:

Okay.

So are there any -- do

Board Members have any agenda items for our future
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1

agenda?
MEMBER HOXIE:

2
3

I'd like to have an updated

appeal list, status of appeals.

4

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Good.

5

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

Anything else?
Will it be at our next

6

meeting that we will meet for the first time with the

7

new director?

8

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Yes, I would assume so.

9

DIRECTOR ENG:

I would think so.

10

MS. HAYASHIDA:

That's up to the new director.

11

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

Right.

So does that

12

need to be an agenda item that we get to know that

13

person?

14

MS. HAYASHIDA:

15

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

16

DIRECTOR ENG:

17

MS. HAYASHIDA:

18

You could put that down.

Can't duck you forever.
We'll call it introduction of

the new Director and Deputy Director.

19

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

20

MR. KUSHI:

21

MS. HAYASHIDA:

22

MR. KUSHI:

23

MS. HAYASHIDA:

24
25

Yes.

Thank you.

Next meeting is January
27th.

You have the appeal?
I have the Molokai Veterans

appeal scheduled that day, that's it.
VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

And when do we get the
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1

next Water Use Development Plan?

2

DIRECTOR ENG:

I believe, if I may --

3

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Please.

4

DIRECTOR ENG:

What information I have, I

5

think Carl was planning to submit the Upcountry plan at

6

the end of February.

7

VIC E-CHAIR ROBINSON:

8

DIRECTOR ENG:

9

Okay.

Something like that.

was a couple months ago, I think, we met.

And that

And now he's

10

getting a better feel for when he can get it to you

11

folks and on to the Council.

12

drawn-out process given all the other plans that need to

13

be completed, but

It's going to be a pretty

14

VICE -CHAIR ROBINSON:

15

DIRECTOR ENG:

16

VICE-CHA IR ROBINSON:

Thank you.

17

CHAIR HOWDEN:

So the most important

18

Yeah.

Okay.

thing, of course, our water -- our resolution.
MS. HAYASHIDA:

19
20

So February, probably?

Oh, you want to go to Division

Reports before?

21

CHAIR HOWDEN:

22

MS. HAYASHIDA:

23

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Oh, Division Reports.

MEMBER HOXIE:

I move we accept all the

24

25

What?
Division Reports.
No one

is here.
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1

Division Reports.

2

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

3

CHAIR HOWDEN:

4

I second.

Well done.

Anything else,

. Gaye?

5

MS. HAYASHIDA:

6

CHAIR HOWDEN:

7

MS. HAYASHIDA:

That's it.
Did everybody sign?
No.

You need to read the

8

resolution into the record, and then the last page you

9

can write on this, take a vote -DIRECTOR ENG:

10
11

it against any of you.

12

personally anymore.

13

MEMBER LESTER:

14

CHAIR HOWDEN:

15
16
17
18

Oh, not voting.
Okay?

I won't hold

I don't take anything

You got thick skin now.
Oh, Phyllis, okay.

Well done.

Okay.
Board of Water Supply, County of Maui,
Resolution Number 2, 2010.
Whereas, Jeffrey K. Eng of Makawao, Maui,

19

Hawaii was appoint e d Director of th e Department of Water

20

Supply of the County of Maui in January 2007;

21

And whereas, the said Jeffrey K. Eng has, with

22

dedication, devoted his time and energy into matters

23

dealing with the Department of Water Supply, all in the

24

interest of the people of the County of Maui;

25

And whereas, the said Jeffrey K. Eng has shown
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1

his continued dedication to the development and

2

protection of water resources f or the people of Maui

3

County;

4

And

whereas~

under the direction of Jeffrey K.

5

Eng, the Department of Water Supply applied for and

6

secured new water use permits for wells in the

7

designated Iao Aquifer and permits for high-level

8

sources, Iao Tunnel and Kapeniwai;

9

And whe reas, under the direction of Jeffrey K.

10

Eng, the Department of Water Supply has been actively

11

involved in the State of Hawaii Commission on Water

12

Resource Management's decision to amend the instream

13

flow standards of Na Wai Eha, the designation of Na Wai

14

Eha for surface water management and the amended interim

15

instream flow standards for the streams of the East Maui

16

watershed, to protect the share of water for the people

17

of the County of Maui;

18

And whereas, under the direction of Jeffrey K.

19

Eng, the Department of Water Supply has made significant

20

progress with substantial public involvement in the

21

completion of the Water Use and Development Plan for

22

Lanai, Upcountry and Central Maui, with the complex

23

analysis required in the integrated resource planning

24

process to provide a long-range planning blueprint for

25

all uses of water in these areas;
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l A n d whereas, under the direction of Jeffrey K.
2

Eng, the Department of Water Supply successfully reduced

3

water demand in Central Maui through public education

4

and a request for a 10 percent reduction in usage, the

5

first of such drought cutbacks for the Central Maui

6

system;

7

And whereas, under the direction of Jeffrey K.

8

Eng, the Department of Water Supply has upgraded three

9

water treatment facilities to state-of-the-art

10

micro-filtration technology to improve efficiency and

11

reduce costs;

12

And whereas, under the direction of Jeffrey K.

13

Eng, the Department of Water Supply has made significant

14

strides in morale and productivity in the Department

15

overall and significantly increased the teamwork of the

16

operations staff;

17

And whereas, under the direction of Jeffrey K.

18

Eng, the Department of Water Supply has made significant

19

improvements to the standby procedures to reduce

20

overtime costs;

21

And whereas, under the direction of Jeffrey K.

22

Eng, the Department of Water Supply Laboratory

23

successfully acquired national accreditation in

24

microbiology through the EPA-sponsored National

25

Environmental Laboratory Acceptance Program, NELAP;
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1

And whereas, under the direction of Jeffrey K.

2

Eng, the Department of Water Supply successfully

3

implemented the Pookela Well for Upcountrydrought

4

mitigation;

5

And whereas, under the direction of Jeffrey K.

6

Eng, the Department of Water Supply successfully

7

restored water service to Kula and Lahaina after the

8

devastation of the December 2007 Kona storm.

9

This goes on for a few more pages.

10

MEMBER HOXIE:

Shall we take a break?

11

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Okay.

12

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

13

here.
CHAIR HOWDEN:

14

15
16

This is a man's life

Jeffrey is the one who needs

the break.
Whereas, under the direction of Jeffrey K.

17

Eng, the Department -- this is last page -- the

18

Department of Wat e r Supply Engineering Di v ision filled

19

all vacant engineer and clerical positions with

20

qualified and enthusiastic individuals;

21

And whereas, under the direction of J e f f rey K.

22

Eng, the Departme nt o f Water Supply has increased its

23

eIP projects, and the d esign and construction o f new

24

p r ojects have b ee n completed within the time allotted;

25

And whereas, under the direction of Jeffrey K.
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1

Eng, the Department of Water Supply has successfully

2

organized the staff and implemented procedures to

3

expedite building permit applications;

4
5

And whereas, under the direction -- did you
write this?

6

MR. KUSHI:

7

CHAIR HOWDEN:

8

No.

It's too long for me.
I don't know, Ed.

On a roll

here.

9

Whereas, under the direction of Jeffrey K.

10

Eng, the Department of Water Supply subdivision

11

requirements and regulations have been updated and

12

codified in the Maui County Code;

13

And whereas, under the direction of Jeffrey K.

14

Eng, the Department of Water Supply is developing new

15

water sources for West Maui, Haiku, Hana and Molokai;

16

And whereas, the said Jeffrey K. Eng has won

17

the respect and admiration of employees of the

18

Department of Water Supply.

19

Now, ther e fore, be it resolved by the Board of

20

Water Supply of the County of Maui, that it does hereby

21

congratulate, commend and thank the said Jeffrey K. Eng

22

for the four years of faithful and outstanding service

23

rende red as the Director of the Departme nt of Water

24

Supply.

25

And be it further resolved that the Members of
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1

the Board of Water Supply extend to Jeffrey K. Eng our

2

sincere aloha and best wishes for his continued success

3

and much happiness in his future endeavors.

4

And be it further resolved that certified

5

copies of this resolution be transmitted to the said

6

Jeffrey K. Eng, to the Mayor and to the County Council

7

of the County of Maui.

8

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

9

(Applause. )

10

MEMBER GERBIG:

11

CHAIR HOWDEN:

12

MS. HAYASHIDA:

13

CHAIR HOWDEN:

14

MR. KUSHI:

15

CHAIR HOWDEN:

16

(A chorus of ayes.)

Yes.

Congratulations.
So-Take a roll call.
Roll call vote.

All in favor?
Those in favor?

17

MS. HAYASHIDA:

Unanimous.

18

CHAIR HOWDEN:

19

MS. HAYASHIDA:

20

she -- I mean, Patty, that was not

So we don't have to slgn it?
I will just put Phyllis, that

21

CHAIR HOWDEN:

22

MS. HAYASHIDA:

Excused, yeah.

23

And then, also,

I think we also have another

24
25

lei.

Excused.

We did do a resolution for you, Mr. Kushi.
MR. KUSHI:

What?

Why?
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1

MS. HAYASHIDA:

2

MR. KUSHI:

3

MS. HAYASHIDA:

4

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

5

MS. HAYASHIDA:

6

Board.

7

promotion.

But--

Who said I'm leaving?
You're not leaving.
You're not leaving.

We hope you're not leaving the

A lei for you, congratulate you on your

MR. KUSHI:

8

Oh.

Oh, no.

(Applause. )

9

MS. HAYASHIDA:

10

And the Board hopes that you

11

will continue to be their attorney.

12

MEMBER YAMAMURA:

13

MR. KUSHI:

14

MS. HAYASHIDA:

15

thank you.

16

yourself.

No.

The dissenting vote here.
But, anyway, this is a small

And I brought some food, and so help

17

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

18

MEMBER GERBIG:

19

DIRECTOR ENG:

Thank you so much.

Meeting adjourned?
Thank you.

I'd just like to

20

say a couple of words, to thank all of you for your

21

commitment to, you know, such a voluntary servi ce.

22

Actually, I kind of am kind of impressed by

23

what you guys have gone through.

And even becoming a

24

board member.

25

knows, I attempted to be a board member.

I mean, couple of people here -- like JR
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1

2002?

Some of you know the story.

2

a couple of mayors ago.

3

Committee of the Whole for confirmation.

4

know, to get this far is really something.

5

you what it takes to become Director, you know.

6

been a good one.

I was nominated back

And I had to go before the
Down.

So, you

So it shows
It's

Again, I thank you for your commitment.

7

You

8

folks -- I really like the makeup of this body now.

9

It's so -- it's nice, lot of energy, lot of balance.

10

You know, a couple of members are leaving end of

11

March--

12

MEMBER LESTER:

13

DIRECTOR ENG:

Yeah.
you know.

So that should be

14

further interesting.

15

mayor is going to make it very interesting, you know.

16

A new director, I think the new

You know, I've been really fortunate to have a

17

really good supportive staff.

You know, any

18

accomplishments, what few we can accomplish, given the

19

constraints we work under, but, you know, really takes a

20

-- a staff, a supportive staff.

21

fortunate to have that.

22

day in the Department, I sensed that, you know, we could

23

work together.

24

think that's what the staff wanted, was, you know, just

25

some direction, just some -- someone who will be there

And I was really

I mean, even from my very first

And they did.

They came through.
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1

to support them, because they certainly supported me

2

many, many times, you know.

3

I

al~o

wanna thank JR.

He kept me but of

4

trouble for four years, you know.

And -- and in

5

committee meetings, it's kind of interesting because

6

sometimes when I'm sitting there,

7

irritated by a testifier or a councilmember, and he

8

knows kind of my move, I start to get -- I want to blurt

9

something into the microphone.

I'm either getting

He doesn't even have to

10

look at me, he'll be on his computer, he'll just raise

11

his hands and hold me back.

12

MR. KUSHI:

13

DIRECTOR ENG:

14

Just move the mic away from him.
So I really appreciate you, JR.

Good luck to you --

15

MR. KUSHI:

Thank you.

16

DIRECTOR ENG:

in your new job.

And,

17

again, thank you so much, everyone, for your support,

18

too.

It was fun.

Thank you.

19

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

20

CHAIR HOWDEN:

It's been an interesting run.

DIRECTOR ENG:

Yeah.

CHAIR HOWDEN:

As I said publicly and

21

Thank you.

22
23

24
25

It's been great.

Great getting to know

you folks.

privately many times, I feel that you have brought
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1

really unique qualiti es to this job.

2

it's always easy for, you know, a department director to

3

do that.

4

not been known for its compassion.

5

done a remarkable job helping bring the Department

6

together.

And -- and certainly the Water Department has

7

DIRECTOR ENG:

8

VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

9

And I don't think

second that.

And I think you've

Thank you.
Yeah.

And I'd like t o

And I'd also like to express my

10

appreciation for your patience with those of us who

11

don't know that much about water, and, yet, sit on the

12

Board of Water Supply.

13

educator of us in that process.

14

sincerely appreciate that.

15

have appreciated your patience with us.

That you've been a guide and an
And I really, really

As an educator myself, I

16

DIRECTOR ENG:

Thank you.

17

CHAIR HOWDEN:

So, Ed, do you have a speech t o

18

make?
MR. KUSHI:

19
20

23

No.

No, don't say anything.

Leave wel l enough alone is my motto.
VICE-CHAIR ROBINSON:

21
22

No.

You could say, "Let's

eat."
MEMBER HOXIE:

I have a question f or Ed.

24

know, what's gonna happen with your role here?

25

do you have any idea?

I mean,

Will somebody else come on or
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1

what?
MR. KUSHI:

2

We don't know yet.

Again, this

3

may be premiture, but I appreciate it.

Because the

4

designated Corp Counsel is this person named Patrick

5

Wong.

6

confirmed by the Council, which Jeff went through.

7

assuming he -- he is confirmed, which will probably

8

happen late February, then my appointment is -- he

9

appoints me, technically.

The Mayor nominated him and he needs to be
So

And then, hopefully, all of

10

the other staff will be reappointed.

11

positions are -- you know, we can come and go like

12

tradewinds, so -- but assuming no further shakeup,

13

shakeups or shakeup, for the -- for the immediate

14

future,

15

because I don't wanna throw anybody to the lions right

16

away, you know.

17

As you know, all

I intend to advise the Department and the Board

There may be some changes.

We definitely have

18

two new attorneys coming in, because the Deputy and the

19

Corp -- First Deputy and the Corporation Counse l have

20

sought other employments.

21

only our office, it's his office and all the other

22

departments.

But, again, you know, not

It should be interesting.

23

MEMBER HOXIE:

24

MEMBER GERBIG:

25

CHAIR HOWDEN:

Well, you know
I move that we adjourn.
Okay.

(Gavel. )
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1

(Meeting adjourned at 10:43 a.m.)

2
3
4

5
6
7
8
9

10
11

12
13
14

15

16
17
18
19
20

21
22
23
24

25
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CERTIFICATE

1

2
3
4

I, TONYA MCDADE, Certified Court . Reporter of

5

the State of aawaii, #447, Registered Profeisional

6

Reporter, Certified Realtime Reporter, Certified

7

Broadcast Captioner, do hereby certify that the

8

proceedings contained herein were taken by me in machine

9

shorthand and thereafter was reduced to print by means

10

of computer-aided transcription; and that the foregoing

11

represents, to the best of my ability, a true and

12

accurate transcript of the proceedings had in the

13

foregoing matter.

14

I further certify that I am not an attorney

15

nor an employee of any of the parties hereto, nor in any

16

way concerned with the cause.

17

DATED this 11th day of January, 2011.

18
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22
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